

Page 1 of 2 


 


Location:  Bonney Lake Public Services Center, 21719 96th St E, Bonney Lake, Washington. 


 


The public is invited to attend Planning Commission Meetings in person, via conference call or 


over the internet. The information for attending is provided below.  


 


Planning Commission Meetings attendance options: 


In-Person: Bonney Lake Public Services Center, 21719 96th St E, Bonney Lake 


By internet: Chrome- Click Here To Join By Microsoft Teams Link  
Your microphone will be turned off when attending online until the start of the public 


commenting section and when your name is called, will be then turned on.  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER: Commissioner Grant Sulham, Chair 


II. ROLL CALL:  Commissioner Grant Sulham, Commissioner Jessica Bennion, 


Commissioner Brad Doll, Commissioner Craig Sarver, Commissioner Jeffery Wilkins, 


and Commissioner Debbie Strous-Boyd.


III.  NEXT MEETING POLL (March 06, 2024) 


IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: (January 03, 2024) 


V. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND CONCERNS: 
Public comments can be made in-person, by phone or virtually during this portion of the meeting. 
Comments are limited to 5 minutes. Those planning to comment via phone or virtually will need to 


sign up prior to the meeting in order to comment. When signing up, please provide your name, your 
screen name, and phone number (for callers), and if your comments are for general public comments 


or for the public hearings and which hearing, either by email to spietzk@cobl.us or by phone at 253-


447-3108. Virtual and call in registrations need to be received by 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 
During the meeting, your name will be called when it is your turn. Your microphone will be 


activated, and you will be able to comment. Those physically appearing at the Planning Commission 


meeting to speak during citizen comments do not need to sign up but will be asked to state their name 


and address for the meeting record. 


VI. PUBLIC HEARING: None. 


VII. OLD / CONTINUING BUSINESS: None. 


VIII. NEW BUSINESS 


A. Code Enforcement Update – No Advanced Materials.  


B. 700.100-700.330 Policy Review 


PLANNING 


COMMISSION MEETING 


 


February 21, 2024 


6:00 p.m. 


 


AGENDA 


 


 
“Where Dreams Can Soar” 


The City of Bonney Lake’s Mission is 


to protect the community’s livable 


identity and scenic beauty through 


responsible growth planning and by 


providing accountable, accessible and 


efficient local government services. 
 


www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us  


Agenda Packet p.1 of 53


P. 3


P. 7



https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YzQwOTQ2ZWMtMzJjMC00YTQ2LThiZDUtZTkwZTFjYWQyOTA5%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22ca5b7f21-3ca0-4e46-9549-2ab8c27aebac%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%228e2168a7-322d-497a-b724-16f9fe961140%22%7d

http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/





Planning Commission Meeting Agenda   February 21, 2024 


Page 2 of 2 


IX. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 


A. Correspondence 


B. Staff Comments 


C. Commissioner Comments 


X. ADJOURNMENT 


Next Scheduled Meeting: March 06, 2024 


 


 


Agenda Packet p. 2 of 54







Page 1 of 3 


 


Location:  Justice & Municipal Center, 9002 Main Street East, Bonney Lake, Washington. 


I. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 6:04 p.m.  


II. Roll Call: Planning Commissioners in attendance were Chair Grant Sulham, Vice-Chair Craig 


Sarver, Commissioner Jessica Bennion, Commissioner Brad Doll, Commissioner Debbie Strous-


Boyd, and Commissioner Jeffery Wilkins.  


City staff members in attendance were Planning and Building Supervisor Jason Sullivan and 


Planning Commission Clerk Kennedy Spietz. 


III. Next Meeting Poll: 


By common consent, Commissioners agreed to hold the next Planning Commission Meeting on 


January 16, 2024. 


IV. Approval of Minutes:  


Motion was made by Commissioner Wilkins and seconded by Commissioner Sarver to 


approve the minutes from the December 06, 2024, Meeting, with minor corrections. 


Motion approved 6 – 0. 


V. Public Comments and Concerns: None. For efficient use of city resources, comments will be a 


short summary and not verbatim. Video recordings will be uploaded to the city’s YouTube 


channel and an audio recording to the state digital archives if needing a complete review of 


comments.  


VI. Public Hearing: None. 


 


VII. Old / Continuing Business: None. 


 


VIII. New Business 


A. Election of Chair and Vice Chair: No Advanced Materials.  


Motion was made by Commissioner Doll and seconded by Commissioner Wilkins to 


appoint Grant Sulham as the 2024 Planning Commission Chair. 


Motion Approved 6-0. 


PLANNING COMMISSION 


MEETING 
 


January 03, 2024 


6:00 p.m. 


 


DRAFT MINUTES 


City of 


 


 


 
 


 


“Where Dreams Can Soar” 


The City of Bonney Lake’s Mission is 


to protect the community’s livable 


identity and scenic beauty through 


responsible growth planning and by 


providing accountable, accessible and 


efficient local government services. 
 


www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us  


 


Audio starts at: 


06:03:00 


Audio starts at: 


06:04:00 


Audio starts at: 


06:05:00 


Audio starts at: 


06:05:30 


Audio starts at: 


06:05:45 


Audio starts at: 


06:06:00 


Audio starts at: 


06:04:35 


Agenda Packet p.3 of 53



http://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/





Planning Commission Meeting Minutes  January 3, 2024 


Page 2 of 3 


Motion was made by Commissioner Doll and seconded by Commissioner Sarver to 


appoint Jessica Bennion as the 2024 Planning Commission Vice-Chair. 


B. Planning Commission 2024 Calendar: No Advanced Materials. 


By common consent, the Planning Commission agreed to the Planning Commission 2024 


Calendar. The dates for the 2024 Planning Commission meetings are as follows:  


Tuesday, January 16th - Joint Planning Commission and City Council Meeting 


Wednesday, February 21st - Planning Commission Meeting 


Wednesday, March 6th - Planning Commission Meeting 


Wednesday, March 20th - Planning Commission Meeting 


Wednesday, April 17th - Planning Commission Meeting 


Wednesday, May 22nd - Planning Commission Meeting 


Wednesday, June 5th - Planning Commission Meeting 


Wednesday, July 10th - Planning Commission Meeting 


Wednesday, July 31st - Planning Commission Meeting 


 No meetings will be held in August, September – December meetings are influx.  


IX. For the Good of the Order 


A. Correspondence: None. 


B. Staff Comment 


Planning and Building Supervisor Sullivan updated the Planning Commission on both the 


PTROS Plan and the new Development Services team. 


 


Planning and Building Supervisor Sullivan talked about the vacancy on the Planning 


Commission and how the appointment works. 


C. Commissioner Comments: 


Chair Sarver asked about the agenda of the joint City Council and Planning Commission 


Meeting. 


 


 


 


 


Audio starts at: 


06:17:00 


Audio starts at: 


06:17:30 


Audio starts at: 


06:20:00 


Agenda Packet p. 4 of 54







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes  January 3, 2024 


Page 3 of 3 


X. Adjournment 


Motion was made by Commissioner Doll and seconded by Commissioner Sarver to adjourn 


the meeting. 


Motion approved 6 – 0. 


Meeting adjourned at 6:22 p.m. 


 


 


_____________________________________ 


Kennedy Spietz, Planning Commission Clerk 


Agenda Packet p.5 of 53







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 


 


 


Agenda Packet p. 6 of 54







2024 Code Update     Page 1/1 


  Planning Commission Agenda Item 
 


 


Meeting Date: February 21, 2024 


Memo Date: February 15, 2024 


Staff Contact: Sadie Schaneman  


Action Type: Discussion 


Agenda Title: 700.100-700.330 Policy Review 


PURPOSE: 


To update and reformat policies to what is currently being done and clarifying wording. 


ATTACHMENTS: 


A. 700.100 Tobacco Use in City Parks 


B. 700.105 Non-Discrimination In Athletic Facilities Rentals and Attachments 


C. 700.110 Sports Concussions and Sudden Cardiac Arrest - Sports Facilities Rentals and 


Attachments 


D. 700.115 Lightning At Outdoor Work And Events 


E. 700.330 Rental of City Facilities and Attachments 


 


SUGGESTED MOTION: 


N/A 


DISCUSSION: 


Agenda Packet p.7 of 53







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 


 


 


Agenda Packet p. 8 of 54







700.100 


 


 1 


Administrative Policy and Procedure 


    City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
 


SUBJECT:  Tobacco Use In City Parks 
 
Policy No. 700.100 


 
Pages: 2 


 


Developed by: Gary Leaf and Don Morrison 


Sadie Schaneman 


 
 
Effective Date:  June 1, 2017 


 
Supersedes:  700.100 adopted 1/23/20136/1/2017 


 
Department Director Approval: 


 


 
City Administrator Approval: 


 


 
Mayor Approval: 


 


 


1 PURPOSE 


The purpose of this policy is to ban the use of tobacco, including tobacco chew or “dip”, and 


vaping of any kind in City Parks. The City of Bonney Lake finds that tobacco use and, smoked 


or chewed, and vaping in the proximity of children and adults engaging in or watching outdoor 


recreational activities at City parks is detrimental to their health and can be offensive to those 


using such facilities. The Tacoma Pierce County Health Department has included vaping 


(electronic cigarettes) in the same category as cigarette use, banning them from public places. 


Cigarettes, once consumed in public spaces, arc are often discarded on the ground requiring 


additional maintenance expenses, diminish the beauty of City parks, and pose a risk to toddlers 


due to ingestion. The City believes parents, leaders, and officials involved in recreation are role 


models for youth and can have a positive effect on the lifestyle choices they make. The City has 


a unique opportunity to create and sustain an environment that supports a non-tobacco and non-


vaping norm through adoption of this policy. 


2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED 


Public Works, Executive, and Police Departments. 


3 REFERENCES 


BLMC 12.12.010:. Rule Making Authority 


4 DEFINITIONS 


4.1 Tobacco Use. Any product containing, made, or derived from tobacco that is intended 


for human consumption, whether chewed, smoked, absorbed, dissolved, inhaled, 


snorted, sniffed, or ingested by any other means, or any component, part, or accessory 


of a tobacco product including but not limited to cigarettes; cigars and other smoking 


tobacco; snuff and other chewing tobacco; electronic delivery devices; and any other 


kinds and forms of tobaccoUse of any form of tobacco, including chewing tobacco. 


Agenda Packet p.9 of 53



https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html





700.100 


 


 2 


4.2 Vaping. Use of a cylindrical device which releases smokeless nicotine, heated vapor, 


flavorings, and other chemicals into the mouth and lungs when it is inhaled. 


4.3 "Smoke" or "smoking". Inhaling or exhaling smoke from any lighted or heated 


cigar, cigarette, pipe, or any other tobacco or plant product, or inhaling or exhaling 


aerosol or vapor from any electronic delivery device. Smoking includes being in 


possession of a lighted or heated cigar cigarette, pipe, or any other tobacco or plant 


product intended for inhalation, or an electronic delivery device that is turned on or 


otherwise activated. 


5 RESPONSIBILITIES 


5.1  Park Staff. Parks staff arc are responsible for posting appropriate signage notifying 


the public of no smoking rules. 


5.2 Executive And Special Events Staff. Executive and special events staff shall 


publicize this policy to create awareness of it. 


5.3 All Employees. All City employees who are on-duty in City parks are expected to 


enforce this policy by making violators aware of the policy. 


5.4 Police Department. The Police Department will perform any necessary ejection or 


trespassing as outlined in Section 6, especially in confrontational or recurring 


situations. 


6 STATEMENTS OF POLICY AND PROCEDURE 


6.1  Although electronic cigarettes (vapers) are smokeless, they are nonetheless 


considered a health hazard. 


6.2 Tobacco use and vaping (electronic cigarettes) are prohibited in City parks. No person 


shall use any form of tobacco or vaping in City parks, including restrooms, beaches, 


trails, and spectator and concession areas. 


6.3 Any person found violating this policy may be subject to immediate ejection from the 


park for the remainder of the day. Repeat or belligerent offenders may be trespassed 


from the park as needed.  


7 ATTACHMENTS 


None. 


 


 


 


 


Agenda Packet p. 10 of 54







700.105 


 


 1 


Administrative Policy and Procedure 


  City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
 


SUBJECT: Non-Discrimination in Community Athletic Facilities Rentals 
 
Policy No. 700.105 


 
Pages: 24 


 
Developed by: H. Edvalson Sadie 


Schaneman 
 
Effective Date: July 1, 2014 


 
Supersedes: Policy 700.105 Dated 7/1/2014  


 
Department Director Approval: 


 


 
City Administrator Approval: 


 


 
Mayor Approval: 


 


 


1 PURPOSE 


To ensure that the City establish policy and procedure to provides equal access to public 


community athletic/sports facilities by prohibiting discrimination on the basis of gender and to 


help ensure that with regard to gender, the City of Bonney Lake and third parties providing 


community athletics/sports programs at city facilities expand and support the equal participation 


in community athletics programs and provide equal access to city facilities that support such 


programs. 


2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED 


All Departments and Divisions administering the reservation and rental of the City’s athletic 


facilities. 


3 REFERENCES 


RCW 35A.21.350: Community athletics programs — Sex discrimination prohibited. 


RCW 49.60.500: Community athletics programs — Sex discrimination prohibited — 


Definitions. 


RCW 49.60.505: Community Athletics Programs – Nondiscrimination Policy Required.  


WSESSB 5967: Prohibiting Unfair Practices In Public Community Athletics Programs 


WA Laws 2009; Chapter 467: Community Athletics Programs Sex Discrimination 


4 DEFINITIONS 


4.1 Community Athletics Program. Any athletic program that is organized for the 


purpose of training for and engaging in athletic activity and competition that is in any 


way operated, conducted, administered or supported by the City of Bonney Lake, or 


rents the City’s sports facilities. 


4.2 Sports Facilities. Any indoor or outdoor property owned, operated or administered by 


the City of Bonney Lake and used for the purpose of training for and/or engaging in 


athletic activity and competition. 


Agenda Packet p.11 of 53



https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=35A.21.350

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=49.60.500

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=49.60.505

https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2009-10/Pdf/Bills/Senate%20Passed%20Legislature/5967-S.PL.pdf#page=1

https://leg.wa.gov/codereviser/documents/sessionlaw/2009pam3.pdf





700.105 


 


 2 


5 RESPONSIBILITIES 


5.1  Public Services. The City Department responsible for the rental of the City’s sports 


facilities and forwill assure ensuring that groups renting the facilities are aware of the 


provisions of this policy, receive a signed statement of compliance, and that no 


facilities rentals will be allowed to any party that discriminates against any person on 


the basis of gender in the operation, conduct or administration of a community 


athletics program. The Administrative Services Department is currently responsible 


for the rental of the City’s sports facilities. 


6 STATEMENTS OF POLICY AND PROCEDURE 


6.1 The City of Bonney Lake will offer its sports facilities to community athletic 


programs on an equal basis and in a non-discriminatory manner. Facilities will be 


scheduled such that youth and adultsindividuals are afforded the same use privileges 


and access with respect to gender. 


6.1.1 At the time of payment for the reservation/rental and prior to the use of the 


City’s facility, Community athletics programs shall present a statement 


declaring their non-discriminatory policy and practices with respect to any 


person on the basis of gender in the operation, conduct or administration of the 


athletic program. 


6.1.2 This policy will be posted on the Bonney Lake Website, along with the name, 


office address and office telephone number of employees the Risk Manager 


who is responsible for administering ensuring compliance with RCW 


49.60.505 - Community athletics programs – Nondiscrimination policy 


requiredwith this policy. (See Attachment A.) 


6.1.3 Any citizen individual who feels she or hethey have has been the victim of 


discriminatory treatment in violation of this policy should fill out a report and 


submit it this concern to one of those persons listed on Attachment Athe Risk 


Manager in person, by mail, or by an online claims submission form. 


• In Person/Mail: 


Justice & Municipal Center 


ATTN: Risk Manager 


9002 Main St. E., Ste 300 


Bonney Lake, WA 98391 


• Claims Form: 


https://bonneylakewa.seamlessdocs.com/f/AthleticDiscriminationClai


m/ 


6.1.36.1.4 The Director of Administrative ServicesRisk Manager will be responsible 


for the investigation of any complaint received under this policy. 


6.1.46.1.5 If discrimination is determined by the City of Bonney Lake, the City will 


take appropriate corrective action within the scope of its authority. 


7 ATTACHMENTS 


None. 


Agenda Packet p. 12 of 54



https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=49.60.505

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=49.60.505

https://bonneylakewa.seamlessdocs.com/f/AthleticDiscriminationClaim/

https://bonneylakewa.seamlessdocs.com/f/AthleticDiscriminationClaim/





700.105 


 


 3 


7.1 List of employees responsible for the City’s efforts to comply with - Community 


athletics programs – Nondiscrimination policy required and receive complaints of 


discrimination associated with the rental of city-owned athletic facilities. (6.1.3) 


7.2 Nondiscrimination in Fields Rental Statement (6.1.1) 


Agenda Packet p.13 of 53







700.105 


 


 4 


ATTACHMENT A 


 


Employees responsible for the City’s efforts to comply with - Community athletics programs 


– Nondiscrimination policy required, and receive complaints of discrimination associated 


with the rental of community athletics facilities: 


 


Harwood Edvalson, Administrative Services Director 


9002 Main St. E, Ste. 125 


Bonney Lake, WA 98391 


(253) 447-4310 


edvalsonw@ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 


 


Sue Hilberg, Senior Services Manager 


19304 Bonney Lake Blvd. 


Bonney Lake, WA 98391 


(253) 447-4327 


hilbergs@ci.bonney-lake.wa.us 


 


Don Morrison, City Administrator 


9002 Main St. E, Ste. 200 


(253) 447-4307 


morrisond@ci.bonney-lake.wa.us  


Agenda Packet p. 14 of 54







700.105 


 


 5 


ATTACHMENT B  


City of Bonney Lake 


ANTIDISCRIMINATION IN FIELD RENTALS STATEMENT 


 


 


As a duly authorized representative of _______________________________________, 
       (Name of Athletic Program) 


I acknowledge that I have read the following excerpts from the Revised Code of Washington and 


that my organization will abide by the law of the State of Washington with respect to non-


discrimination on the basis of sex. 


 


 


Community athletics programs — Sex discrimination prohibited — Definitions. 


 


(1) No city, town, county, or district may discriminate against any person on the basis of sex in 


the operation, conduct, or administration of community athletics programs for youth or adults. A 


third party receiving a lease or permit from a city, town, county, district, or a school district, for a 


community athletics program also may not discriminate against any person on the basis of sex in 


the operation, conduct, or administration of community athletics programs for youth or adults. 


 


   (2) The definitions in this subsection apply throughout this section. 


 


   (a) "Community athletics program" means any athletic program that is organized for the 


purposes of training for and engaging in athletic activity and competition and that is in any way 


operated, conducted, administered, or supported by a city, town, county, district, or school 


district other than those offered by the school and created solely for the students by the school. 


 


   (b) "District" means any metropolitan park district, park and recreation service area, or park 


and recreation district. 


 


 


Community athletics programs — Sex discrimination prohibited. 


 


The antidiscrimination provisions of  apply to community athletics programs and facilities 


operated, conducted, or administered by a code city. 


 


 


 


______________________________________________  _________________ 
 Signature of Representative     Date 
 


 


______________________________________________ 
 Printed Name of Representative 


 


 


 


Agenda Packet p.15 of 53







 
 


ANTIDISCRIMINATION IN FIELD RENTALS STATEMENT 


 


 


As a duly authorized representative of _______________________________________, 
       (Name of Athletic Program) 


I acknowledge that I have read the following excerpts from the Revised Code of Washington and 


that my organization will abide by the law of the State of Washington with respect to non-


discrimination on the basis of sex. 


 


RCW 49.60.500 


Community athletics programs — Sex discrimination prohibited — Definitions. 


 


 


(1) No city, town, county, or district may discriminate against any person on the basis of sex in 


the operation, conduct, or administration of community athletics programs for youth or adults. A 


third party receiving a lease or permit from a city, town, county, district, or a school district, for a 


community athletics program also may not discriminate against any person on the basis of sex in 


the operation, conduct, or administration of community athletics programs for youth or adults. 


 


  (2) The definitions in this subsection apply throughout this section. 


 


   (a) "Community athletics program" means any athletic program that is organized for the 


purposes of training for and engaging in athletic activity and competition and that is in any way 


operated, conducted, administered, or supported by a city, town, county, district, or school 


district other than those offered by the school and created solely for the students by the school. 


 


   (b) "District" means any metropolitan park district, park and recreation service area, or park 


and recreation district. 


 


RCW 35A.21.350 


Community athletics programs — Sex discrimination prohibited.  


 


The antidiscrimination provisions of RCW 49.60.500 apply to community athletics programs and 


facilities operated, conducted, or administered by a code city. 


 


 


 


______________________________________________  _________________ 
 Signature of Representative     Date 
 


 


______________________________________________ Printed Name of Representative 


Agenda Packet p. 16 of 54



https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=49.60.500

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=35A.21.350

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=49.60.500





700.110 


 


 


 1 


Administrative Policy and Procedure 


  City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
 


SUBJECT: Sports Concussions and Sudden Cardiac Arrest – Sports Facility Rentals 
 
Policy No. 700.110 


 
Pages: 1210 


 
Developed by: H. EdvalsonS. Schaneman 


 
Effective Date: November 10, 2015 


 
Supersedes: Policy 700.110 version 6/30/1411/10/2015 


 
Department Director Approval: 


 


 
City Administrator Approval: 


 


 
Mayor Approval: 


 
 


1 PURPOSE 


The purpose of this policy is to provide information regarding the Zackery Lystedt Law (sports 


concussions) and the Sudden Cardiac Arrest Awareness Act (youth sudden cardiac arrest) to 


community youth athletics groups renting the City’s sports facilities and to require compliance 


with these laws as a condition of such rental. 


2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED 


All Departments and Divisions administering the reservation and rental of the City’s athletic 


facilities. 


3 REFERENCES 


RCW 4.24.660: Liability Of School Districts Under Contracts With Youth Programs 


RCW 28A.600.190: Youth Sports – Concussions And Head Injury Guidelines – Injured Athlete 


Restrictions – Short Title. 


RCW 28A.600.195: Sudden Cardiac Arrest In Youth Athletes—Online Pamphlet—Online 


Prevention Program For Coaches 


ESSB 5083.S.PL: – Sudden Cardiac Arrest Awareness Act (SCAAA) – See RCW 28A.600  


HB 1824: Management Of Concussion And Head Injury In Youth Sports 


4 DEFINITIONS 


4.1 Community Athletics Program. – Any athletic program that is organized for the 


purpose of training for and engaging in athletic activity and competition that is in any 


way operated, conducted, administered, or supported by the City of Bonney Lake, or 


rents the City’s sports facilities. 


4.2 Sports Facilities –. Any property owned, operated, or administered by the City of  


Bonney Lake and used for the purpose of training for and/or engaging in organized 


athletic activity and competition. 


5 RESPONSIBILITIES 


Agenda Packet p.17 of 53



https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=4.24.660

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28a.600.190

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.600.195

https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2015-16/Pdf/Bills/Senate%20Passed%20Legislature/5083-S.PL.pdf#page=1

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/documents/billdocs/2009-10/Pdf/Bills/House%20Bills/1824.pdf





700.110 


 


 


 2 


5.1  City Of Bonney Lake. While the City of Bonney Lake is not directly subject to the 


Zackery Lystedt Law, or the SCAAA, the City Department responsible for the rental of 


the City’s sports facilities will assure that community athletics programs renting the 


city’s facilities are provided this policy and attachments in an effort to promote 


awareness of the risk of concussion and sudden cardiac arrest in youth sports and that 


each program renting City facilities will confirm compliance with these laws. The 


Administrative Public Services Department is currently responsible for the rental of the 


City’s sports facilities. 


6 STATEMENTS OF POLICY AND PROCEDURE 


6.1 The City of Bonney Lake is concerned for the safety of youth participating in 


community athletics programs, particularly with respect to sudden cardiac arrest or 


youth concussions and other head injuries. 


6.2 The Department responsible for reserving and renting the City’s sports facilities will 


provide to the person making reservations on behalf of community athletics programs, a 


copy of this policy and the  following reference items:to the person making reservations 


on behalf of community athletics programs. 


6.2.1 Information Regarding the Zackery Lystedt Law and Head Injuries in Youth 


Sports. 


6.2.2 Sudden Cardiac Arrest Information Sheet 


6.2.3 Athlete/Parent/Guardian Concussion and Sudden Cardiac Arrest 


Acknowledgement Form 


6.2.4 CDC Parents Information Sheet On Concussions (English and Spanish) 


6.2.5 CDC Athletes Information Sheet On Concussions (English and Spanish) 


6.2.6 CDC Coaches Information Sheet On Concussions (English and Spanish) 


6.2.7 CDC Sports Officials Information Sheet On Concussions (English and 


Spanish) 


6.3 The City will maintain this policy information on its website including web links to 


sources of information regarding the Zackery Lystedt Law and head injuries, as well as 


sudden cardiac arrest in youth sports. 


6.4 All youth sports programs who rent City sports facilities will confirm that they are 


compliant with the Zackery Lystedt Law and head injuries, as well as sudden cardiac 


arrest in youth sports. Such organizations shall confirm that they will (1) provide 


information substantially similar to the information sheets attached to this policy to 


their athletes and families, and (2) shall obtain signatures from athletes and parents or 


legal guardians on concussion and cardiac arrest information in a form substantially 


similar to the forms attached to this policy. The organization shall keep such signatures 


on file for a minimum of three years. 


6.5 All youth sports programs who rent City sports facilities will turn in a signed 


Compliance Acknowledgement Statement and a Coach/Sports Official signed 


Awareness Training Compliance Statement.  


7 ATTACHMENTS 


7.1 Information Regarding the Zackery Lystedt Law and Head Injuries in Youth Sports. 


7.2 Sudden Cardiac Arrest Information Sheet 


7.3 CDC Parents Information Sheet On Concussions (English and Spanish) 


Agenda Packet p. 18 of 54







700.110 


 


 


 3 


7.4 CDC Athletes Information Sheet On Concussions (English and Spanish) 


7.5 CDC Coaches Information Sheet On Concussions (English and Spanish) 


7.6  CDC Sports Officials Information Sheet On Concussions (English and Spanish) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Agenda Packet p.19 of 53







700.110 


 


 


 4 


7.1  Information Regarding the Zackery Lystedt Law and Head Injuries in Youth Sports.                         


 


CITY OF BONNEY LAKE 
Information Regarding the Zackery Lystedt Law, Head Injuries in 


Youth Sports and the Sudden Cardiac Arrest Awareness Act 
 


Youth sports pose an inherent risk of injury to young athletes. Events in the past several years, such 
as the death of a seventeen year old football player in Spokane Valley, confirm that athletes can 
suffer potentially catastrophic brain injury during athletic competition. A 2015 Washington State 
Law also recognizes sudden cardiac arrest as the leading cause of death in young athletes. 
 


To address these concerns, the Washington State Legislature adopted the Zackery Lystedt Law, 
which requires that school and private nonprofit community athletic programs using school facilities 
restrict participation by athletes who may have suffered a concussion. The Law mandates the 
removal of a player suspected of having a concussion from competition or practice; written 
clearance to return to competition or practice from a trained health care provider trained in 
evaluation and management of concussions; education and training of coaches in how to recognize 
and respond to possible symptoms and signs of a concussion; notification to youth athletes and 
parents about the nature and risk of head injury and concussions; and a written acknowledgement by 
youth athletes and parents that they have been provided an education sheet about the risks of 
concussions. 
 


The State Legislature adopted a similar law to promote educational awareness concerning sudden 
cardiac arrest in youth sports. An attached flier to this policy addresses symptoms and how to 
prevent and treat cardiac arrest. 
 


The City of Bonney Lake does not use school athletic facilities in its community athletic field rentals, 
and therefore, is not directly subject to the Zackery Lystedt Law or the Sudden Cardiac Arrest 
Awareness Act. However, in the interest of promoting awareness of the potential for sports 
concussions and brain injuries, as well as youth sudden cardiac arrest, the City of Bonney Lake will 
provide all community athletics programs renting the City’s parks facilities with information 
regarding the possible symptoms and signs of concussion and sudden cardiac arrest and require 
compliance with these standards as a condition of rental. Bonney Lake also highly encourages all 
community athletics programs to require training for all athletes on concussion and sudden cardiac 
arrest and encourages annual impact testing and sports physicals for all athletes. 
 


Among many other detailed on-line sources of information on these two topics, their prevention 
and management, is the Washington Interscholastic Activities Association Website found at 
www.wiaa.com.  
 


Thank you for your attention, and play safely! 
 
 
The City of Bonney Lake 
Department of Administrative Services 


Agenda Packet p. 20 of 54



http://www.wiaa.com/





700.110 


 


 


 5 


7.2 Sudden Cardiac Arrest Information Sheet 


 


Agenda Packet p.21 of 53







700.110 


 


 


 6 


7.3 CDC Parents Information Sheet On Concussions (English and Spanish) 


        


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Agenda Packet p. 22 of 54







700.110 


 


 


 7 


7.4 CDC Athletes Information Sheet On Concussions (English and Spanish) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


Agenda Packet p.23 of 53







700.110 


 


 


 8 


7.5 CDC Coaches Information Sheet On Concussions (English and Spanish) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


              


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Agenda Packet p. 24 of 54







700.110 


 


 


 9 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Agenda Packet p.25 of 53







700.110 


 


 


 10 


7.6 CDC Sports Officials Information Sheet On Concussions (English and Spanish 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


Agenda Packet p. 26 of 54







 
 


 
COACH'S CONCUSSION AND SUDDEN CARDIAC ARREST AWARENESS 


TRAINING COMPLIANCE STATEMENT. 
 


 
On May 14, 2009, the Governor of Washington, Christine Gregoire signed the Zackery Lystedt 
Law. Effective July 26, 2009, the Lystedt Law directly affects youth sports and head injury 
policies particularly how you, as a coach, need to respond to player injuries. The law requires 
that: 
 


1. An informed consent must be signed by parents and youth athletes acknowledging the 
risk of head injury prior to practice or competition  


2. A youth athlete who is suspected of sustaining a concussion or head injury must be 
removed from play – “when in doubt, sit them out”  


3. A youth athlete who has been removed from play must receive written clearance 
from a licensed health care provider prior to returning to play. 


 
Training must be done every three (3) years and can be found at the following website: 
https://www.cdc.gov/headsup/youthsports/training/index.html 
 
This form must be signed, with a copy of training completion certificate, annually by coaches 
prior to participation in athletics played on The City of Bonney Lake premises. If you have 
questions regarding any of the information provided in the information sheets, please contact 
the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
I have received training on recognizing signs and symptoms of concussion/brain injury, 
including watching the educational video produced by Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention, and am in compliance with the Zackery Lystedt Law. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________      _________ 
Coach Name (Printed)   Coach Name (Signed)       Date 


 


Agenda Packet p.27 of 53



https://www.cdc.gov/headsup/youthsports/training/index.html





 
 


 
SPORTS OFFICIALS CONCUSSION AND SUDDEN CARDIAC ARREST 


AWARENESS TRAINING COMPLIANCE STATEMENT. 
 


 
On May 14, 2009, the Governor of Washington, Christine Gregoire signed the Zackery Lystedt 
Law. Effective July 26, 2009, the Lystedt Law directly affects youth sports and head injury 
policies particularly how you, as a coach, need to respond to player injuries. The law requires 
that: 
 


1. An informed consent must be signed by parents and youth athletes acknowledging the 
risk of head injury prior to practice or competition  


2. A youth athlete who is suspected of sustaining a concussion or head injury must be 
removed from play – “when in doubt, sit them out”  


3. A youth athlete who has been removed from play must receive written clearance 
from a licensed health care provider prior to returning to play. 


 
Training must be done every three (3) years and can be found at the following website: 
https://www.cdc.gov/headsup/sportsofficials/training/index.html 
 
This form must be signed, with a copy of training completion certificate, annually by sports 
officials prior to participation in athletics played on The City of Bonney Lake premises. If you 
have questions regarding any of the information provided in the information sheets, please 
contact the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
I have received training on recognizing signs and symptoms of concussion/brain injury, 
including watching the educational video produced by Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention, and am in compliance with the Zackery Lystedt Law. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ _______________________________      _________ 
Sports Officials Name (Printed)  Sports Officials Name (Signed)      Date 


 


Agenda Packet p. 28 of 54



https://www.cdc.gov/headsup/sportsofficials/training/index.html





 
 


Compliance Statement For RCW 4.24.660, RCW 28A.600.190 & RCW 
28A.600.195 Youth Sports Head Injury Policies and Sudden Cardiac Arrest 


Awareness. 
 


 
 [Name of Organization]____  has requested to reserve the use of the City of 
Bonney Lake’s sports field(s) for the following dates: 
 


DATE ACTIVITY/SPORT WHAT FIELD 
 
 


  


 
 


  


 
 


  


 
 


  


 
 


 [Name of Organization]____ , a private non-profit youth sports group, verifies all 
coaches, athletes and their parents/legal guardians have complied with mandated policies for 
the management of concussions, head injuries and sudden cardiac arrest awareness as 
prescribed by RCW 4.24.660, RCW 28A.600.190 and RCW 28A.600.195. 
 


The Youth Sports Group required insurance shall be as follows: 
General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office (ISO) 
occurrence form CG 00 01 covering premises, operations, products-completed operations 
contractual liability and coverage for participant liability. The City of Bonney Lake shall be 
named as an additional insured on the General Liability insurance policy using ISO Additional 
Insured-Managers or Lessors of Premises Form CG 20 11 or an endorsement providing at 
least as broad coverage. The General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less 
than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. Proof of insurance and 
additional insured endorsement are attached. 
 
The  [Name of Organization]____  shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of 
Bonney Lake, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and against any and all 
claims, suits, actions, or liabilities for injury or death of any person, or for loss or damage to 
property, which arises out of the use of Premises or from any activity, work or thing done, 
permitted, or suffered by User in or about the Premises, except only such injury or damage as 
shall have been occasioned by the sole negligence of the City of Bonney Lake. 
 


 
 
     ________________________________     
Representative of Private Non-Private Youth Sports Group Name Printed 
 


 
 
_______________________________________________________      _______________ 
Representative of Private Non-Private Youth Sports Group Signature                  Date 


 
*Note: Access to City sports fields may not be granted until all requirements of this application are complete 
and approved by the City. 


Agenda Packet p.29 of 53



http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?Cite=4.24.660

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=28A.600.190

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/supdefault.aspx?cite=28A.600.195





 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 


 


 


Agenda Packet p. 30 of 54







700.115 


 


 1 


Administrative Policy and Procedure 


    City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
 


SUBJECT:  Lightning/Thunder at Outdoor Events and Worksites 
 
Policy No. 700.115 


 
Pages: 3 


 
Developed by:  H. EdvalsonS. Schaneman 


 
Effective Date:  May 25, 2016 


 
Supersedes:  NewPolicy 700.115 Dated 5/25/2016 


 
Department Director Approval: 


 


 
City Administrator Approval: 


 


 
Mayor Approval: 


 


1 PURPOSE 


The purpose of this policy is to establish a procedure for evaluating the potential for exposure to 


and warning participating employees and the public of local thunderstorm and/or lightning 


activity during organized outdoor events at city facilities, and for employees working out-of-


doors. 


2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED 


All Departments and Divisions responsible for or sponsoring an outdoor event at a city or other 


facility. 


3 REFERENCES 


http://www.lightningsafety.noaa.gov/resources/large_venue.pdf 


http://www.lightningsafety.noaa.gov/outdoors.shtml 


http://www.ncaa.org/health-and-safety/lightning-safety 


4 DEFINITIONS 


None. 


5 RESPONSIBILITIES 


5.1 City Of Bonney Lake. It is the responsibility of departments coordinating outdoor 


events or with employees/volunteers in the outdoors for extended periods of time to 


implement procedures in conformance with this policy for the protection of 


employees/volunteers and the public. 


6 STATEMENTS OF POLICY AND PROCEDURE 


6.1 Departments coordinating an outdoor event have the responsibility to check the weather 


forecast an hour before the start of the event or before support staff/volunteers are 


scheduled to report at the event site. 


6.1.1 If the general area weather forecast includes storms with thunder/lightning 


during the event and its preparation, a staff member or responsible volunteer 


Agenda Packet p.31 of 53



http://www.lightningsafety.noaa.gov/resources/large_venue.pdf

http://www.lightningsafety.noaa.gov/outdoors.shtml

http://www.ncaa.org/health-and-safety/lightning-safety





700.115 


 


 2 


shall be assigned to monitor the weather forecast with a detection device, an 


electronic app or other real time information source to give warning to event 


staff if a potential storm cell is traveling toward Bonney Lake and is within 10 


miles. 


6.1.2 If the general forecast is for thunderstorms including the Bonney Lake Area, a 


general service announcement will be made to the assembled public at the 


beginning of the event to the effect that if a warning is given, or if thunder is 


heard or lightning seen by the participants or audience, then all should seek 


immediate shelter indoors or in their enclosed vehicles. 


6.1.3 If the storm cell is within 10 miles of Bonney Lake, or anytime lightning is 


seen or thunder heard, participants at the event, including staff and volunteers, 


shall be advised to seek shelter as quickly as possible indoors or in their own 


parked vehicles. The event activities shall cease until such time as thunder and 


lighting is neither seen nor heard for a period of ½ hour. 


6.1.4 The event coordinator or other designated employee shall have the authority to 


either cancel the event prior to its start or cancel further activity if the event has 


already commenced 


6.2 Departments with outdoor worksites or employees/volunteers with outdoor work 


assignments have the responsibility to check the weather forecast prior to deployment 


outdoors.  


6.2.1 If the general area weather forecast includes the potential for thunderstorms in 


the area of labor, a responsible staff person will be tasked with periodic 


monitoring of the current weather forecast with a detection device, an 


electronic app or other real time information source to give warning in the 


event a potential storm cell is traveling toward Bonney Lake and is within 10 


miles. 


6.2.2 If the storm cell is within 10 miles of Bonney Lake, or anytime lightning is 


seen or thunder heard, employees/volunteers are expected to seek shelter 


indoors or within a hard-top, enclosed vehicle.  Outdoor work shall cease until 


such time as the thunder and lightning is neither seen nor heard for a period of 


½ hour, or the in-house weather monitor confirms the storm cell has passed 10 


miles beyond Bonney Lake. 


6.2.3 A supervisory employee will determine whether the work site will be 


immediately abandoned in favor of an enclosed work location, or if employees 


will remain in the vicinity of the original work area, but in a safe location, until 


safe to resume work outdoors. 


7 ATTACHMENTS 


7.1 Flash to Bang Estimator of Lightning Distance 


 


 


 


 


Agenda Packet p. 32 of 54







700.115 


 


 3 


7.1 Flash to Bang Estimator of Lightning Distance 


If Thunder is heard The Lightning is… 


5 seconds after a Flash 1 mile away 


10 seconds after a Flash 2 miles away 


15 seconds after a Flash 3 miles away 


20 seconds after a Flash 4 miles away 


If Thunder is heard The Lightning is… 


25 seconds after a Flash 5 miles away 


30 seconds after a Flash 6 miles away 


35 seconds after a Flash 7 miles away 


40 seconds after a Flash 8 miles away 


45 seconds after a Flash 9 miles away 


50 seconds after a Flash 10 miles away 


 


 


Agenda Packet p.33 of 53







 
 


 


AMUSEMENT STRUCTURES AND RIDES 
 


 


The City of Bonney Lake allows the use of Amusement Structures and Rides as defined and regulated by the 


Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 296-403A within its parks.  These include, but are not limited to, such rides 


as bouncy houses, mechanical bulls, etc.  Animal rides are not an allowed use on City property.  A reservation for the 


park will not be complete unless the applicant meets the following conditions: 


1. Provide the name, address and telephone number of the owner or operator of the amusement ride or structure 


together with the name and signature of the applicant. 


2. Provide a description of the amusement ride or structure. Each amusement ride or structure must be 


individually identified by a trade name or title and a narrative description from which the amusement 


structure or ride can be identified; and a serial number which is welded onto the frame or contained on an 


identification plate which is permanently affixed to the amusement structure or ride. 


3. Provide a copy of the current certificate of inspection: The amusement ride inspector or insurer per RCW 


67.42.020 (2) must certify that the amusement ride or structure has been inspected for safety and meets the 


standards for compliance with all applicable requirements of the National Electrical Code and this chapter, 


manufacturer's specifications, American Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM) Standards on Amusement 


Rides and Devices, and insurance company inspection requirements.  Amusement rides or structures that 


undergo major modification must be recertified by an amusement ride inspector or insurer per RCW 


67.42.020 (2) before being placed into operation. 


4. Provide a copy of the operator’s proof of insurance/insurance certificate in an amount not less than one 


million dollars per occurrence insuring the owner and/or operator and the City against liability for injury to 


persons arising out of the use of the amusement ride or structure. 


5. A picture of the current operating decal and operating permit. 


6. Provide a signed reservation form including hold harmless language. 
 


1st Amusement Structure/Ride 
 


Owner/Operator: ________________________________________________  Phone: ________________________ 
 


Address: _______________________________________________________  Alt. Phone: ____________________ 
 


Amusement Structure/Ride Description: _____________________________________________________________ 
 


_____________________________________________________________________________________________   
 


Serial Number: _________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


2nd Amusement Structure/Ride 
 


Owner/Operator: ________________________________________________  Phone: ________________________ 
 


Address: _______________________________________________________  Alt. Phone: ____________________ 
 


Amusement Structure/Ride Description: _____________________________________________________________ 
 


_____________________________________________________________________________________________   
 


Serial Number: _________________________________________________________________________________ 


 
Agenda Packet p. 34 of 54



https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=296-403A

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=67.42.020

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=67.42.020

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=67.42.020

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=67.42.020





700.330 


 


1 


Administrative Policy and Procedure 


    City of Bonney Lake, Washington 
 


SUBJECT:  Rental of City Facilities 
 
Policy No. 700.330 


 
Pages: 1119 


 
Developed By:  Jenna Richardson, HT 


EdvalsonSadie Schaneman 
 
Effective Date:  August 23, 2019 


 
Supersedes:  August 8, 2018700.330 Dated 8/23/2019 


 
Department Director Approval: 


 


 
City Administrator Approval: 


 


 
Mayor Approval: 


 


1 PURPOSE 


The purpose of this policy is to provide an internal guideline for the rental of City owned 


facilities. 


2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED 


Departments assigned to coordinate the rental of City owned facilities. 


3 REFERENCES 


Administrative Policy 700.100: Tobacco Use In City Parks 


Administrative Policy 700.105: Non-Discrimination In Community Athletic Facilities Rentals 


Administrative Policy 700.110: Sports Concussions and Sudden Cardiac Arrest 


BLMC 3.90.040: Revenue and Finance- Miscellaneous Fees, City Facility Rental. 


BLMC 12.12: Park Regulations 


BLMC 12.12.055: Streets, Sidewalks and Public Places- Park Regulations, Fees Established; 


BLMC 12.12.140: Weapons  


BLMC 12.12.145: Fireworks Prohibited 


RCW 67.42.020(2): Requirements—Operation of amusement ride or structure—Bungee jumping 


device inspection 


RCW 70.160.030: Smoking Prohibited In Public Places Or Places Of Employment 


WAC 296-403A: Amusement Rides Or Structures 


Ordinance Nos. 1500, 1544, and 1610.  


4 DEFINITIONS 


4.1 Authorized Department. An authorized department refers to the department(s) that 


have been given responsibility to coordinate the rental of City facilities. 


4.2 Coordinator. Coordinator refers to the assigned staff member(s) that has been assigned 


to rent and coordinate facility rentals. 


4.3 Rental Form. Rental form refers to required forms and applications for rentals. 


4.4 Renter. Renter refers to an individual who has made application and provided payment 


for the use of City Facilities. 


5 RESPONSIBILITIES 


Agenda Packet p.35 of 53



https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake03/BonneyLake0390.html

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=67.42.020

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=70.160.030

https://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=296-403A





700.330 


 


2 


It is the responsibility of the assigned division(s) of the Administrative Services and Public 


Services Departments to administer and coordinate the rental of city facilities as assigned. The 


administration of the rental program includes: updating appropriate sections of the BLMC and 


policies, when necessary; adhering to this policy; verifying renter applicant status; completion of 


appropriate forms; calculation of fees and acceptance of payment, and coordination and update 


of rental calendars. 


5.1 Senior Center Staff. Senior Center Staff will be responsible for the coordination and 


scheduling of the Senior Center Facilities. 


5.2 Public Services Department Staff. Public Services Department Staff (located in the 


Public Works Center) will be responsible for the coordination and scheduling of other 


City buildings and City park. 


6 STATEMENTS OF POLICY AND PROCEDURE 


6.1 General Statement. The City has made available, through the Bonney Lake Municipal 


Code (BLMC), certain city owned buildings and parks for rental by the public. Various 


staff members have been assigned the task of coordinating rental requests. The 


coordination of such requests will be on a first come, first serve basis and all requests 


will be given equal consideration. 


6.2 Available Locations for Rental. The following locations are available for public 


use/rental:  


6.2.1 Senior Center Main Hall (includes kitchen usage) 


Public Works Center Meeting Room 


6.2.2 Justice & Municipal Center Council Chambers/Lobby Justice & Municipal 


Center 1st Floor Meeting Room/Lobby  


6.2.3 Public Safety Building Training Room 


6.2.4 Public Services Panorama Meeting Room (includes kitchen usage) 


6.2.5 Allan Yorke Park Sports Fields (1-45)  


6.2.6 Allan Yorke Park Picnic Shelter  


6.2.7 Cedarview Park Picnic Shelter 


6.3 Rental Procedures. A renter must submit an application to rent the desired facility and 


coordinate with a representative of the Public Services Department or Senior Center, as 


appropriate. All rental forms are located on the City's website and/or may be obtained at 


the Senior Center, Public Works Center, or Justice & Municipal Center during business 


hours. Upon application and payment by a renter, staff will coordinate the rental 


through the appropriate Outlook calendar. The renter should be given a receipt for their 


rental, a copy of the appropriate policy and contact information for the date of their 


rental. In addition, if the rental will requires a building monitor, the coordinator Senior 


Services Manager will notify the Senior Services Manager so that ensure a building 


monitor can be scheduled. 


6.4 Notification Procedures. In order to assist departments to maintain essential City 


business throughout the week, the coordinator of the event will need to notify 


departments that may be affected by a rental. The following should be notified: 


6.4.1 Large groups for park rentals: Assistant Superintendent and Crew Lead 


assigned to Parks 


6.4.2 Council Chambers or 1st Floor Meeting Room: Court Administrator and City 


Clerk’s Office 


6.4.3 Location requiring a Building Monitor: Senior Services Manager 


6.5 Building Monitor Duties. A building monitor is required for rental of City Buildings. 


If a City employee will attend the event, they may act as the building monitor at 


Agenda Packet p. 36 of 54







700.330 


 


3 


his/hertheir sole expense. The assigned building monitor will be responsible to make 


note of the facility prior to the scheduled renter's arrival, enforcing the rules/regulations 


of the facility, and to ensure the renter has returned the facility to pre-use condition. A 


Facility Rental Checklist is required for each rental. The building monitor should note 


the pre/post-use condition of the building with the renter. In the event there is an issue 


with opening/closing of a building, the Senior Services Manager will be the primary 


point of contact. 


6.6 Building Items Available for Renter's Usage. The following items have been 


preapproved for renter usage at each building:  


6.6.1 Senior Center: Tables, chairs, 100-cup coffee maker (2), steam table, stovetop, 


and oven, and dishwasher. 


6.6.2 Justice & Municipal Center: Tables, chairs, refrigerator, and dishwasher, and 


audio/visual equipment. 


Public Works Center: Tables, chairs, kitchen area (not to include dishes or other items placed in 


cupboards). 


6.6.3 Public Safety Building: Tables, chairs, whiteboards, and audio/visual 


equipment. 


6.6.4 Public Services Center: Tables, chairs, coffee maker, range, microwaves, and 


dishwasher. 


7 ATTACHMENTS 


7.1 Parks/Facility Rates and RoomsField Reservation Processes & Procedures 


7.2 Parks/Facility Rental ApplicationShelter Reservation Processes & Procedures 


Parks/Facility Rental Policy 


7.3 Amusement Structures and And Rides Regulations 


Facility Rental Checklist 


7.4 Senior Center Rental Policy Processes & ApplicationProcedures 


7.5 Justice & Municipal Center & Public Safety Building Rental Processes & Procedures 


7.6 Services Center Processes & Procedures 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Agenda Packet p.37 of 53







700.330 


 


4 


 


7.1 Field Reservation Processes & Procedures  


City Field Rental Processes & Procedures 


Please check for availability on the City Webpage prior to submitting a rental application or by 


calling 253-447-4319. 


 


The City of Bonney Lake has created “reservation windows” during which time each person or 


organization desiring to reserve a sports field must complete and submit this application. At the 


close of the reservation window, staff will review all reservation applications. Reservations will 


be confirmed with each reservation applicant starting the 15th of the month after the closing of 


the reservation window. Every attempt will be made to honor all reservation requests, however if 


a conflict between requests exists, staff will grant the reservation request while considering 


equity in field use among the various reservation applicants. Reservation request conflicts will 


not be coordinated by city staff. It is assumed that the various organizations can coordinate to 


resolve scheduling conflicts. 


 


Field reservation windows are: 


 


Allan Yorke Park Fields 1 - 4 (Grass Fields): January 1 through January 31 for reservations to 


occur between March 1 and December 31. No reservations are allowed January 1 through 


February 28. Reservations will only be allowed for the current year (a year is January 1 – 


December 31). 
 


Allan Yorke Park Field 5 (Multi-Sport Turf Field): January 1 through January 31 for reservations 


to occur between April 1 and June 30 and May 1 through May 31 for reservations to occur 


between July 1 and December 31. No reservations are allowed January 1 through March 31. 


Reservations will only be allowed for the current year (a year is January 1 – December 31). 
 


Reservations are not finalized until payment is made in full.  


 


View photos of facilities on the Park and Facility Rental Page on the City of Bonney Lake 


Website. 


 


Allan Yorke Park Fields 


Allan Yorke Park 7203 West Tapps Hwy 


• 5 Ball Fields 


RENTAL FEES – per BLMC 12.12.055  


1. Sports Fields (Sports Uses)  


• Fields 1-4 - $15.00 per  hour per field, 2-hour minimum 


• Field 5 - $50.00 per hour, 2-hour minimum 


2. Picnic/Playground & Other Uses1 


• 1-50 persons No Fee 


• 51-100 persons - $75.00 per 4-hour block  


• 101 or more - $200.00 per 4-hour block 


3. League Block Rentals of Fields 


• Week block rental fields 1-46 - $100.00 per week, per field 


• Week block rental field 57 - $50.00 per hour, 2-hour minimum 


• Month block rental fields 1-48 - $200.00 per month, per field 


Agenda Packet p. 38 of 54



https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/government/departments/public_services/public_works/park_and_facilities_reservations

https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/government/departments/public_services/public_works/park_and_facilities_reservations

https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/government/departments/public_services/public_works/park_and_facilities_reservations

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html





700.330 


 


5 


4. Field rates also apply if rental includes any use of fields. 


5. No reservations will be accepted without a minimum 2 business days prior notice to the 


requested date for review and confirmation from the City of Bonney Lake. 


6. A week block rental includes Monday-Friday from 4:00 p.m. to dusk and Saturdays from 


8:00 a.m. to dusk per field for all fields EXCEPT Field 5. 


7. A week block rental for Field 5 includes Monday – Friday 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. the weekly 


block rate is charged at $50.00 per hour. 


8. Monthly block rentals per field include 4 weeks; partial months are charged at the weekly 


rate for all fields except Field 5.  Field 5 is not available for monthly block rentals at this 


time. 


9. Weekday reservations for Fields 1-4 are dawn to dusk and Field 5 from 8:00 a.m. to 9:00 


p.m. Weekend reservations for Fields 1-4 are from dawn to dusk and Field 5 from 8:00 a.m. 


to 9:00 p.m. 


10. Field reservation applications will be confirmed February 15th and June 15th for field 5 with 


payment due upon approval. 


11. Field 5 lights will be charged to the reserving party for $20.00 per hour per the following 


schedule and subject to change per The City of Bonney Lakes discretion. 


 


January…………… 4:30 PM May …………….… 8:00 PM September ….….. 7:00 PM 


February ………..... 5:00 PM June ………………  8:30 PM October………… 6:00 PM 


March …………….  6:30 PM July………………..  9:00 PM November ……..  4:30 PM 


April ……………….7:30 PM August…………….  8:00 PM December ……... 4:00 PM 
 


*Please note that lights will remain on until 9:30pm to facilitate field clean up. The reserving 


party will not be charged for this additional time. 


 


The City of Bonney Lake requires Commercial Liability and Participant Liability Certificates of 


Insurance and additional insured endorsements naming The City of Bonney Lake as an additional 


insured. Each Certificate shall include  coverage with limits not less than $1,000,000 


per occurrence. The Certificates of Insurance are required to be in the City’s possession at least 


five business days prior to the reservation date. Send to: 


The City of Bonney Lake 


Attn: Reservations 


21719 96th ST E, FL1 


Buckley, WA 98321 


 


PARK FIELDS RENTAL POLICY RULES AND REGULATIONS 


See BLMC 12.12 – Park Regulations. Violations May Be Deemed a Misdemeanor 


• Park areas are open daily from dawn to dusk and Field 5 is open daily from 8 a.m. to 9 p.m. 


• Groups of 25 or more must make a reservation through the City. 


• Motor vehicle parking is limited. That parking at parking lot adjacent to Ball Field 4 is for 


watercraft trailer parking only. Bicycles are limited to using designated areas. 


• Possession or use of alcohol or illegal drugs is prohibited. 


• Tobacco use is prohibited in City parks per Administrative Policy 700.100. 


• Restrictions apply to weapons, firearms, and fireworks – see BLMC 2.12.140 and 12.12.145. 


• Animals must be on a leash and owner must clean up after their pet. 


• No person shall injure, deface, or damage City property, wildlife, trees, or plants. Littering or 


making fires in non-designated places are prohibited. 
Agenda Packet p.39 of 53



https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html#12.12

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html#12.12.140

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html#12.12.145





700.330 


 


6 


• Structures and non-directional signs may not be placed in any field. 


• Soliciting is prohibited. 


• For use of amplified sound equipment, groups must obtain prior approval from City staff. 


• Facilities may be unavailable for use due to weather or other unforeseen causes. 


• The City reserves the right to pre-empt block rentals for official city use upon advanced 


notice; refunds shall only be made if the impact is one week or greater. 


• The City of Bonney Lake reserves the right to change or cancel any part of a rental 


agreement and the related scheduled activity. 


• The City has a policy of gender-based non-discrimination and equal access for community 


athletics/ sports facilities (Administrative Policy 700.105). Community athletics programs 


renting City sports facilities must submit the Antidiscrimination in Field Rentals Statement” 


(provided by City). 


• The City will provide Community athletics programs renting City sports facilities with a 


copy of Administrative Policy 700.110 related to Sports Concussions (Lystedt Law). 


• Sportsmanship and respect will be shown by all guests, including but not limited to coaches, 


players, parents, guests, officials, and visitors/visiting team. 


• The City of Bonney Lake is not responsible for loss, theft, or damage to vehicles. 
 


The City of Bonney Lake reserves the right to change or cancel any part of a rental agreement 


and the related scheduled activity. 
 


The city may retain a portion of the damage deposit if rental activities require city staff to incur 


additional labor to return the facility to pre-use condition, even though there may have been no 


physical damage. 
 


Examples include but are not limited to: removal of balloons or other items, general cleanup, 


trash removal, and clean up to Field 5. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Agenda Packet p. 40 of 54







700.330 


 


7 


7.2 Picnic Shelter Reservation Processes & Procedures 


 


City Parks Rental Processes & Procedures 


Please check for availability on the City Webpage prior to submitting a rental application or by 


calling 253-447-4319. 
 


Rental reservations are taken on a first come, first served basis for picnic shelters and are not 


subject to the reservation windows for sports field reservations. 
 


Reservations are not finalized until payment is made in full.  
 


View photos of facilities on the Park and Facility Rental Page on the City of Bonney Lake 


Website. 


 


Allan Yorke Park 7203 West Tapps Hwy 


Cedarview Park 9301 208th Avenue E 


• 1 Picnic Shelter 


RENTAL FEES – per BLMC 12.12.055 


1. Picnic/Playground & Other Uses4 


• 1-50 persons No Fee 


• 51-100 persons - $75.00 per 4-hour block  


• 101 or more - $200.00 per 4-hour block 


2. Sports Fields (Sports Uses)  


• Fields 1-4 - $15.00 per  hour per field, 2-hour minimum 


• Field 5 - $50.00 per hour, 2-hour minimum 


3. League Block Rentals of Fields 


• Week block rental fields 1-46 - $100.00 per week, per field 


• Week block rental field 57 - $50.00 per hour, 2-hour minimum 


• Month block rental fields 1-48 - $200.00 per month, per field 


4. Field rates also apply if rental includes any use of fields. 


5. No reservations will be accepted without a minimum 2 business days prior notice to the 


requested date for review and confirmation from the City of Bonney Lake. 


6. A week block rental includes Monday-Friday from 4:00 p.m. to dusk and Saturdays from 


8:00 a.m. to dusk per field for all fields EXCEPT Field 5. 


7. A week block rental for Field 5 includes Monday – Friday 4:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. the weekly 


block rate is charged at $50.00 per hour. 


8. Monthly block rentals per field include 4 weeks; partial months are charged at the weekly 


rate for all fields except Field 5.  Field 5 is not available for monthly block rentals at this 


time. 


9. Weekday reservations for Fields 1-4 are dawn to dusk and Field 5 from 8:00 a.m. to 9:00 


p.m. Weekend reservations for Fields 1-4 are from dawn to dusk and Field 5 from 8:00 a.m. 


to 9:00 p.m. 


10. Field reservation applications will be confirmed February 15th and June 15th for field 5 with 


payment due upon approval. 


11. Field 5 lights will be charged to the reserving party for $20.00 per hour per the following 


schedule and subject to change per The City of Bonney Lakes discretion. 


 


 


 


Agenda Packet p.41 of 53



https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/government/departments/public_services/public_works/park_and_facilities_reservations

https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/government/departments/public_services/public_works/park_and_facilities_reservations

https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/government/departments/public_services/public_works/park_and_facilities_reservations

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html#12.12.055





700.330 


 


8 


CITY PARKS RENTAL POLICY RULES AND REGULATIONS 


 


See BLMC 12.12 – Park Regulations. Violations May Be Deemed a Misdemeanor. 


• Park areas are open daily from dawn to dusk and Field 5 is open daily from 8 a.m. to 9 p.m. 


• Groups of 25 or more must make a reservation through the City. 


• Motor vehicle parking is limited. That parking at parking lot adjacent to Ball Field 4 is for 


watercraft trailer parking only. Bicycles are limited to using designated areas. 


• Possession or use of alcohol or illegal drugs is prohibited. 


• Tobacco use is prohibited in City parks per Administrative Policy 700.100. 


• Restrictions apply to weapons, firearms, and fireworks – see BLMC 2.12.140 and 12.12.145. 


• Animals must be on a leash and owner must clean up after their pet. 


• No person shall injure, deface, or damage City property, wildlife, trees, or plants. Littering or 


making fires in non-designated places are prohibited. 


• Structures and non-directional signs may not be placed in any field. Amusement structures 


and rides are permitted subject to attached regulations located at the bottom of 


application. 


• Soliciting is prohibited. 


• For use of amplified sound equipment, groups must obtain prior approval from City staff. 


• Facilities may be unavailable for use due to weather or other unforeseen causes. 


• The City reserves the right to pre-empt block rentals for official city use upon advanced 


notice; refunds shall only be made if the impact is one week or greater. 


• The City of Bonney Lake reserves the right to change or cancel any part of a rental 


agreement and the related scheduled activity. 


• The City has a policy of gender-based non-discrimination and equal access for community 


athletics/ sports facilities (Administrative Policy 700.105). Community athletics programs 


renting City sports facilities must submit the Antidiscrimination in Field Rentals Statement” 


(provided by City). 


• The City will provide Community athletics programs renting City sports facilities with a 


copy of Administrative Policy 700.110 related to Sports Concussions (Lystedt Law).. 


• Sportsmanship and respect will be shown by all guests, including but not limited to coaches, 


players, parents, guests, officials, and visitors/visiting team. 


• The City of Bonney Lake is not responsible for loss, theft, or damage to vehicles. 
 


The City of Bonney Lake reserves the right to change or cancel any part of a rental agreement 


and the related scheduled activity. 
 


The city may retain a portion of the damage deposit if rental activities require city staff to incur 


additional labor to return the facility to pre-use condition, even though there may have been no 


physical damage. 
 


Examples include but are not limited to: removal of balloons or other items, general cleanup, 


trash removal, and clean up to Field 5. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
Agenda Packet p. 42 of 54



https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html

https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/UserFiles/Servers/Server_15292413/File/Administrative%20Services/Policies/700.100%20Tobacco%20Use%20In%20City%20Parks.pdf

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html#12.12.140

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html#12.12.145

https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/UserFiles/Servers/Server_15292413/File/Administrative%20Services/Policies/700.105%20Non-Discrimination%20in%20Community%20Athletic%20Facilities%20Rentals.pdf

https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/UserFiles/Servers/Server_15292413/File/Administrative%20Services/Policies/700.110%20Sports%20Concussions%20and%20Sudden%20Cardiac%20Arrest%20-%20Facilities%20Rentals.pdf





700.330 


 


9 


7.3 Amusement Structures And Rides Regulations 


 


 


City of Bonney Lake Amusement Structures And Rides Regulations 


The City of Bonney Lake allows the use of Amusement Structures and Rides as defined and 


regulated by the Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 296-403A within its parks. These 


include, but are not limited to, such rides as bouncy houses, mechanical bulls, etc. Animal rides 


are not an allowed use on City property. A reservation for the park will not be complete unless 


the applicant meets the following conditions: 


1. Provide the name, address, and telephone number of the owner or operator of the 


amusement ride or structure together with the name and signature of the applicant. 


2. Provide a description of the amusement ride or structure. Each amusement ride or 


structure must be individually identified by a trade name or title and a narrative 


description from which the amusement structure or ride can be identified; and a serial 


number which is welded onto the frame or contained on an identification plate which is 


permanently affixed to the amusement structure or ride. 


3. Provide a copy of the current certificate of inspection: The amusement ride inspector or 


insurer per RCW 67.42.020 (2) must certify that the amusement ride or structure has been 


inspected for safety and meets the standards for compliance with all applicable 


requirements of the National Electrical Code and this chapter, manufacturer’s 


specifications, American Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM) Standards on 


Amusement Rides and Devices, and insurance company inspection requirements. 


Amusement rides or structures that undergo major modification must be recertified by an 


amusement ride inspector or insurer per RCW 67.42.020 (2) before being placed into 


operation. 


4. Provide a copy of the operator’s proof of insurance/insurance certificate in an amount not 


less than $1,000,000 per occurrence insuring the owner and/or operator and the City 


against liability for injury to persons arising out of the use of the amusement ride or 


structure. 


5. A picture of the current operating decal and operating permit. 


6. Provide a signed reservation form including hold harmless language. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
Agenda Packet p.43 of 53



https://app.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=296-403A

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=67.42.020

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=67.42.020





700.330 


 


10 


7.4 Senior Center Rental Processes & Procedures 


 


Senior Center City Facility Rental Processes & Procedures 


Please check for availability prior to submitting a rental application by calling 253-863-7658. 


Rental reservations are taken on a first come, first served basis.  
 


Reservations are not finalized until payment is made in full.  
 


View photos of facilities on the Park and Facility Rental Page on the City of Bonney Lake 


Website. 
 


Bonney Lake Senior Center 


19304 Bonney Lake Blvd, Bonney Lake, WA 98391 


Main Social Hall 


• Occupancy: 267 standing; approximately 100 with tables & chairs (Size: 35’ x 50’) 


• Equipment: 6’ rectangular tables (10) & chairs; 60” round tables (10) & chairs; 100-cup 


coffee makers (2), steam table, oven, stovetop 


• City Employee Building Monitor is required 


Rental Fees – per BLMC 3.90.040 


• Standard: $250 Damage Deposit + $50 per hour Rental Fee 2-hour minimum 


• Local Non-Profit*: $125 Damage Deposit + $30 per hour Rental Fee 


*Non-Profits not located within the City will be charged the Standard rate. 


 


CITY OF BONNEY LAKE BUILDING FACILITY RENTAL POLICIES 


 


Facility Availability 


Rental times must include time needed for set-up, delivery of any supplies, and consideration for 


clean-up time. City facilities may be closed on certain days throughout the year at the discretion 


of the City of Bonney Lake. 
 


Per BLMC 3.90.040: Rental rates may be reduced by 50% if a member of the rental group is a 


city employee who agrees to serve as the building monitor at his/her sole expense, and is so 


approved in advance by the city.  


 


Cancellations 


Cancellations made at least two months prior to the event will result in no cancellation charge. 
 


Cancellations made with less than a two month notice will result in a non-refundable cancellation 


fee of $100. 
 


Cancellations made with less than a 14 day notice will result in a non-refundable cancellation fee 


of the full rental cost not to exceed $300. 


NOTE: The City of Bonney Lake reserves the right to change or cancel any part of a rental 


agreement and the related scheduled activity. 


 


Damage Deposit Rules 


In addition to rental fees all rental groups will be charged a Damage Deposit. Damage Deposits 


are completely refundable as long as the following terms are met: 


1. The room and adjacent facilities (including outside) are left in a clean and orderly manner per 


the Rental Clean-up Checklist. 


2. Use of the room does not exceed the scheduled time. 


Agenda Packet p. 44 of 54



https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/government/departments/public_services/public_works/park_and_facilities_reservations

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake03/BonneyLake0390.html#3.90.040

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake03/BonneyLake0390.html#3.90.040





700.330 


 


11 


3. All equipment is accounted for and undamaged. 


4. Additional staff time is not required as part of the rental. 


5. Damage to the building has not occurred. 


6. All rules/guidelines governing alcohol consumption as stated by the Alcohol Beverage 


Request Form are met. 


7. All rules/guidelines governing rental usage of the Bonney Lake rental facilities are met. 
 


If these conditions are not met to the satisfaction of the City, an appropriate fee will be deducted 


from the damage deposit. If necessary, rental groups will be charged for any additional costs. 


Please allow 4 weeks for the damage deposit to be returned. 


 


Kitchen Information 


It is the responsibility of the rental group to provide their own cooking, serving, and eating 


supplies, paper products, utensils and all other kitchen items. The only kitchen equipment 


available for rental use are coffeemakers, steam table, counter tops, oven, and stovetop. All other 


equipment is not available for use. 


 


Room Set-up 


Set-up is the sole responsibility of the rental group. Rental groups will not be allowed in the 


facility prior to the start time designated on the rental contract. Please be sure to allow enough 


time to complete the room set-up and decorating when booking the rental. Rental groups will be 


charged for any and all time used for set-up. Rental groups are responsible for returning the room 


to its original configuration. 


 


Alcohol Information 


You may serve beer or wine. You are required to obtain a Washington State Banquet Permit and 


have a licensed bartender serve all alcoholic beverages. Alcohol service must end one hour prior 


to the end of your event. Proof of banquet permit and bartender license is required at time of 


rental. Banquet permit must be posted at the facility 3 days prior to your event. Permits are 


available online at the WSLCB website. 


 


Check In Procedure 


Upon your arrival at the facility that you are renting, you must check in with the building 


monitor. For your safety and convenience, there is always a staff person on duty during your 


event. For groups renting on the weekend, the facility will be opened at the time the rental is 


scheduled to start. 
 


The building monitor is required to conduct a pre-event room inspection prior to the start of a 


rental to ensure cleanliness of the facility. The above procedure applies to building rentals only. 


No monitor will be present during park rentals. 


 


Loading, Deliveries and Storage 


All deliveries must occur during designated rental times only. Deliveries that arrive early will not 


be accepted. City of Bonney Lake staff will not sign for any deliveries. All items must be 


removed from the facility at the end of your rental time. 


 


Cleaning the Facility 


Renters are responsible for cleaning the facility in accordance with the Rental Clean-Up 


Checklist. All garbage is to be removed from the facility at the conclusion of your event and 


placed in the dumpster. The Building Monitor will assist you in locating the dumpster. Cleaning 


Agenda Packet p.45 of 53



https://lcb.wa.gov/licensing/banquet-permits





700.330 


 


12 


equipment for the facility is available and the Building Monitor will assist you in locating it. To 


ensure the return of your damage deposit, the Building Monitor will complete a Rental Clean-Up 


Checklist. 
 


Any cleaning and or repairs that require staff time and materials will be deducted from the 


damage deposit and or charged to the rental group. If a rental exceeds the time reserved, they will 


be charged for the additional time and or it will be deducted from the damage deposit. Failure to 


follow the Clean-Up Checklist may result in forfeiture of the damage deposit and additional 


charges and could also result in denial of future rental usage. 


Decorations 


Decorations may be attached to walls, windows, or ceilings with masking tape or other non-


marring material. Do not use tacks, staples, glue or other marring materials. The use of candles 


or flammable materials is strictly prohibited. Use of any rice is prohibited. Birdseed or confetti 


may be used outside but must be cleaned up. The use of smoke machines is strictly prohibited. 


 


Weapons/Fireworks 


Restrictions apply to weapons, firearms, and fireworks – see BLMC 12.12.140 and 12.12.145. 


 


Smoking 


Tobacco use is prohibited per RCW 70.160.030, therefore, smoking, chewing, etc. is prohibited. 


Persons wishing to smoke may do so OUTSIDE the facility and at least 25 feet from any window 


or door. Please use provided receptacles for proper disposal of cigarettes. Rental groups are 


responsible for cleaning area of debris as a result of smoking/chewing associated with their 


group. 


 


Selling Items 


Rental groups wishing to sell items while renting a city facility must obtain a City of Bonney 


Lake Business License. A copy of the business license must be on file with the rental application 


7 days prior to the scheduled event. For information on obtaining a business license call (253) 


447-4354. 


 


Audio/Video Use 


There is no audio/video use available. Renters need to provide their own laptop, portable 


speakers, projector, microphones, screens, etc. 


 


Insurance 


Any non-personal use of any facilities will need to have a Commercial Liability and Participant 


Liability Certificates of Insurance and additional insured endorsements naming The City of 


Bonney Lake as an additional insured. Each Certificate shall include coverage with limits not 


less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. The Certificates of Insurance are required to be in the City’s 


possession at least five business days prior to the reservation date. Examples are: Special events, 


corporate hosted functions, athletic leagues. A personal insurance agent or an insurance agency 


may be of assistance in securing the required insurance. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Agenda Packet p. 46 of 54



https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html#12.12.140

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html#12.12.145

https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/UserFiles/Servers/Server_15292413/File/Administrative%20Services/Policies/700.100%20Tobacco%20Use%20In%20City%20Parks.pdf

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=70.160.030





700.330 


 


13 


7.5 Justice & Municipal Center & Public Safety Building Rental Processes & 


Procedures 


 


Justice & Municipal Center & Public Safety Building City Facility Rental Processes & 


Procedures 


Please check for availability prior to submitting a rental application by calling 253-863-7658. 
 


Rental reservations are taken on a first come, first served basis.  
 


Reservations are not finalized until payment is made in full.  
 


View photos of facilities on the Park and Facility Rental Page on the City of Bonney Lake 


Website. 
 


Bonney Lake Justice & Municipal Center- *A/V Equipment is not available for rental use* 


9002 Main Street, Bonney Lake, WA 98391 


1. Meeting Room #130 & Lobby 


• Size/Occupancy: Meeting Room: Please contact us for details. 


• Lobby: 246 standing; approximately 83 with tables & chairs (1,232 square feet) 


• Equipment: Meeting Room: Rectangular meeting table (1); chairs (10) 


• Lobby: 36” round tables (3); chairs (12) 


• City Employee Building Monitor is required 


2. Council Chambers & Lobby 


• Size/Occupancy: Chambers: 101 maximum; approximately 35 with tables & chairs (512 


square feet) 


• Lobby: 246 standing; approximately 83 with tables & chairs (1,232 square feet) 


• Equipment: Chambers: Rectangular tables (2 small, 2 large) & chairs (35) 


• Lobby: 36” round tables (3); chairs (12) 


• City Employee Building Monitor is required 


Rental Fees – per BLMC 3.90.040 


Meeting Room 130 & Lobby Standard Fee: $250 Damage Deposit + $30 per hour Rental Fee, 2-


hour minimum 


Council Chambers & Lobby Standard Fee: $250 Damage Deposit + $40 per hour Rental Fee, 2-


hour minimum 


Local Non-Profit*: $125 Damage Deposit + $25 per hour Rental Fee 


*Non-Profits not located within the City will be charged the Standard rate. 


 


Bonney Lake Public Safety Building 


18421 Veterans Memorial Drive, Bonney Lake, WA 98391 


PSB Training Room 


• Size/Occupancy: 160 standing; approximately 80 with chairs; 25-50 with tables and 


chairs. 


• Equipment: Rectangular training tables & chairs. Please contact us for details. 


• City Employee Building Monitor is required 


Rental Fees – per BLMC 3.90.040 


Public Safety Building Training Room Standard Fee: $250 Damage Deposit + $40 per hour 


Rental Fee, 2-hour minimum 


Local Non-Profit*: $125 Damage Deposit + $25 per hour Rental Fee 


*Non-Profits not located within the City will be charged the Standard rate. 


  


Agenda Packet p.47 of 53



https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/government/departments/public_services/public_works/park_and_facilities_reservations

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake03/BonneyLake0390.html#3.90.040

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake03/BonneyLake0390.html#3.90.040





700.330 


 


14 


CITY OF BONNEY LAKE BUILDING FACILITY RENTAL POLICIES 


Facility Availability 


Rental times must include time needed for set-up, delivery of any supplies, and consideration for 


clean-up time. City facilities may be closed on certain days throughout the year at the discretion 


of the City of Bonney Lake. 
 


Per BLMC 3.90.040: Rental rates may be reduced by 50% if a member of the rental group is a 


city employee who agrees to serve as the building monitor at his/her sole expense, and is so 


approved in advance by the city. The Justice & Municipal Center rental rate shall be reduced by 


30% if both the Chambers and Meeting Room facilities are rented simultaneously. 


 


Cancellations 


Cancellations made at least two months prior to the event will result in no cancellation charge. 
 


Cancellations made with less than a two month notice will result in a non-refundable cancellation 


fee of $100. 
 


Cancellations made with less than a 14 day notice will result in a non-refundable cancellation fee 


of the full rental cost not to exceed $300. 


NOTE: The City of Bonney Lake reserves the right to change or cancel any part of a rental 


agreement and the related scheduled activity. 


 


Damage Deposit Rules 


In addition to rental fees all rental groups will be charged a Damage Deposit and are completely 


refundable as long as the following terms are met: 


1. The room and adjacent facilities (including outside) are left in a clean and orderly manner per 


the Rental Clean-up Checklist. 


2. Use of the room does not exceed the scheduled time. 


3. All equipment is accounted for and undamaged. 


4. Additional staff time is not required as part of the rental. 


5. Damage to the building has not occurred. 


6. All rules/guidelines governing alcohol consumption as stated by the Alcohol Beverage 


Request Form are met. 


7. All rules/guidelines governing rental usage of the Bonney Lake rental facilities are met. 


 


If these conditions are not met to the satisfaction of the City, an appropriate fee will be deducted 


from the damage deposit. If necessary, rental groups will be charged for any additional costs. 


Please allow 4 weeks for the damage deposit to be returned. 


 


Room Set-up 


Set-up is the sole responsibility of the rental group. Rental groups will not be allowed in the 


facility prior to the start time designated on the rental contract. Please be sure to allow enough 


time to complete the room set-up and decorating when booking the rental. Rental groups will be 


charged for any and all time used for set-up. Rental groups are responsible for returning the room 


to its original configuration. 


 


Kitchenette Information 


It is the responsibility of the rental group to provide their food, serving, and eating supplies, 


paper products, utensils and all other kitchen items. The only kitchen equipment available for 


rental use at the Justice & Municipal Center is the dishwasher, counter tops, and refrigerator in 


Meeting Room 130. All other equipment is not available for use. 
Agenda Packet p. 48 of 54



https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake03/BonneyLake0390.html#3.90.040





700.330 


 


15 


 


Alcohol Information 


Alcohol is prohibited in both areas at the Justice & Municipal Center rentals. 
 


At the Public Safety Building you may serve beer or wine. You are required to obtain a 


Washington State Banquet Permit and have a licensed bartender serve all alcoholic beverages. 


Alcohol service must end one hour prior to the end of your event. Proof of banquet permit and 


bartender license is required at time of rental. Banquet permit must be posted at the facility 3 


days prior to your event. Permits are available online at the WSLCB website. 


 


Check In Procedure 


Upon your arrival at the facility that you are renting, you must check in with the building 


monitor. For your safety and convenience, there is always a staff person on duty during your 


event. For groups renting on the weekend, the facility will be opened at the time the rental is 


scheduled to start. 
 


The building monitor is required to conduct a pre-event room inspection prior to the start of a 


rental to ensure cleanliness of the facility. The above procedure applies to building rentals only. 


No monitor will be present during park rentals. 


 


Loading, Deliveries and Storage 


All deliveries must occur during designated rental times only. Deliveries that arrive early will not 


be accepted. City of Bonney Lake staff will not sign for any deliveries. All items must be 


removed from the facility at the end of your rental time. 


 


Cleaning the Facility 


Renters are responsible for cleaning the facility in accordance with the Rental Clean-Up 


Checklist. All garbage is to be removed from the facility at the conclusion of your event and 


placed in the dumpster. The Building Monitor will assist you in locating the dumpster. Cleaning 


equipment for the facility is available and the Building Monitor will assist you in locating it. To 


ensure the return of your damage deposit, the Building Monitor will complete a Rental Clean-Up 


Checklist. 
 


Any cleaning and or repairs that require staff time and materials will be deducted from the 


damage deposit and or charged to the rental group. If a rental exceeds the time reserved, they will 


be charged for the additional time and or it will be deducted from the damage deposit. Failure to 


follow the Clean-Up Checklist may result in forfeiture of the damage deposit and additional 


charges and could also result in denial of future rental usage. 


 


Decorations 


Decorations may be attached to walls, windows, or ceilings with masking tape or other non-


marring material. Do not use tacks, staples, glue or other marring materials. The use of candles 


or flammable materials is strictly prohibited. Use of any rice is prohibited. Birdseed or confetti 


may be used outside but must be cleaned up. The use of smoke machines is strictly prohibited. 


 


Weapons/Fireworks 


Restrictions apply to weapons, firearms, and fireworks – see BLMC 12.12.140 and 12.12.145. 


 


Smoking 


Tobacco use is prohibited per RCW 70.160.030, therefore, smoking, chewing, etc. is prohibited. 


Persons wishing to smoke may do so OUTSIDE the facility and at least 25 feet from any window 
Agenda Packet p.49 of 53



https://lcb.wa.gov/licensing/banquet-permits

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html#12.12.140

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html#12.12.145

https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/UserFiles/Servers/Server_15292413/File/Administrative%20Services/Policies/700.100%20Tobacco%20Use%20In%20City%20Parks.pdf

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=70.160.030





700.330 


 


16 


or door. Please use provided receptacles for proper disposal of cigarettes. Rental groups are 


responsible for cleaning area of debris as a result of smoking/chewing associated with their 


group. 


 


Selling Items 


Rental groups wishing to sell items while renting a city facility must obtain a City of Bonney 


Lake Business License. A copy of the business license must be on file with the rental application 


7 days prior to the scheduled event. For information on obtaining a business license call (253) 


447-4354. 


 


Insurance 


Any non-personal use of any facilities will need to have a Commercial Liability and Participant 


Liability Certificates of Insurance and additional insured endorsements naming The City of 


Bonney Lake as an additional insured. Each Certificate shall include coverage with limits not 


less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. The Certificates of Insurance are required to be in the City’s 


possession at least five business days prior to the reservation date. Examples are: Special events, 


corporate hosted functions, athletic leagues. A personal insurance agent or an insurance agency 


may be of assistance in securing the required insurance.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
Agenda Packet p. 50 of 54







700.330 


 


17 


7.6  Public Services Center Rental Processes & Procedures 


 


Public Services Center City Facility Rental Processes & Procedures 


Please check for availability prior to submitting a rental application by calling 253-863-7658. 
 


Rental reservations are taken on a first come, first served basis.  
 


Reservations are not finalized until payment is made in full.  
 


View photos of facilities on the Park and Facility Rental Page on the City of Bonney Lake 


Website. 


 


Bonney Lake Public Services Center *A/V Equipment is not available for rental use* 


21719 96th ST E, Buckley, WA 98321 


Panorama Meeting Room 


• Occupancy: 126 Standing (68 for meeting room, 58 for lunch room) 


• Meeting Room Equipment: 8'X2' rectangular tables (10); chairs (29) 


• Kitchen Equipment: 3'X3' square regular tables (6); 3’X3’ tall square bar tables (3); 


regular chairs (24); tall bar chairs (16); range, dishwasher, microwaves (3), coffee maker 


• City Employee Building Monitor is required 


Rental Fees – per BLMC 3.90.040 


• Standard: $250 Damage Deposit + $50 per hour Rental Fee 2-hour minimum 


• Local Non-Profit*: $125 Damage Deposit + $30 per hour Rental Fee 


*Non-Profits not located within the City will be charged the Standard rate. 


 


CITY OF BONNEY LAKE BUILDING FACILITY RENTAL POLICIES 


Facility Availability 


Rental times must include time needed for set-up, delivery of any supplies, and consideration for 


clean-up time. City facilities may be closed on certain days throughout the year at the discretion 


of the City of Bonney Lake. 
 


Per BLMC 3.90.040: Rental rates may be reduced by 50% if a member of the rental group is a 


city employee who agrees to serve as the building monitor at his/her sole expense, and is so 


approved in advance by the city.  


 


Cancellations 


Cancellations made at least two months prior to the event will result in no cancellation charge. 
 


Cancellations made with less than a two month notice will result in a non-refundable cancellation 


fee of $100. 
 


Cancellations made with less than a 14 day notice will result in a non-refundable cancellation fee 


of the full rental cost not to exceed $300. 


NOTE: The City of Bonney Lake reserves the right to change or cancel any part of a rental 


agreement and the related scheduled activity. 


 


Damage Deposit Rules 


In addition to rental fees all rental groups will be charged a Damage Deposit. Damage Deposits 


are completely refundable as long as the following terms are met: 


1. The room and adjacent facilities (including outside) are left in a clean and orderly manner per 


the Rental Clean-up Checklist. 


Agenda Packet p.51 of 53



https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/government/departments/public_services/public_works/park_and_facilities_reservations

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake03/BonneyLake0390.html#3.90.040

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake03/BonneyLake0390.html#3.90.040





700.330 


 


18 


2. Use of the room does not exceed the scheduled time. 


3. All equipment is accounted for and undamaged. 


4. Additional staff time is not required as part of the rental. 


5. Damage to the building has not occurred. 


6. All rules/guidelines governing alcohol consumption as stated by the Alcohol Beverage 


Request Form are met. 


7. All rules/guidelines governing rental usage of the Bonney Lake rental facilities are met. 
 


If these conditions are not met to the satisfaction of the City, an appropriate fee will be deducted 


from the damage deposit. If necessary, rental groups will be charged for any additional costs. 


Please allow 4 weeks for the damage deposit to be returned. 


 


Kitchen Information 


It is the responsibility of the rental group to provide their own cooking, serving, and eating 


supplies, paper products, utensils and all other kitchen items. The only kitchen equipment 


available for rental use are coffeemaker, range, dishwasher, and microwaves. All other 


equipment is not available for use. 


 


Room Set-up 


Set-up is the sole responsibility of the rental group. Rental groups will not be allowed in the 


facility prior to the start time designated on the rental contract. Please be sure to allow enough 


time to complete the room set-up and decorating when booking the rental. Rental groups will be 


charged for any and all time used for set-up. Rental groups are responsible for returning the room 


to its original configuration. 


 


Alcohol Information 


Alcohol is prohibited for this rental location. 


 


Check In Procedure 


Upon your arrival at the facility that you are renting, you must check in with the building 


monitor. For your safety and convenience, there is always a staff person on duty during your 


event. For groups renting on the weekend, the facility will be opened at the time the rental is 


scheduled to start. 
 


The building monitor is required to conduct a pre-event room inspection prior to the start of a 


rental to ensure cleanliness of the facility. The above procedure applies to building rentals only. 


No monitor will be present during park rentals. 


 


Loading, Deliveries and Storage 


All deliveries must occur during designated rental times only. Deliveries that arrive early will not 


be accepted. City of Bonney Lake staff will not sign for any deliveries. All items must be 


removed from the facility at the end of your rental time. 


 


Cleaning the Facility 


Renters are responsible for cleaning the facility in accordance with the Rental Clean-Up 


Checklist. All garbage is to be removed from the facility at the conclusion of your event and 


placed in the dumpster. The Building Monitor will assist you in locating the dumpster. Cleaning 


equipment for the facility is available and the Building Monitor will assist you in locating it. To 


ensure the return of your damage deposit, the Building Monitor will complete a Rental Clean-Up 


Checklist. 
 


Agenda Packet p. 52 of 54







700.330 


 


19 


Any cleaning and or repairs that require staff time and materials will be deducted from the 


damage deposit and or charged to the rental group. If a rental exceeds the time reserved, they will 


be charged for the additional time and or it will be deducted from the damage deposit. Failure to 


follow the Clean-Up Checklist may result in forfeiture of the damage deposit and additional 


charges and could also result in denial of future rental usage. 


 


Decorations 


Decorations may be attached to walls, windows, or ceilings with masking tape or other non-


marring material. Do not use tacks, staples, glue or other marring materials. The use of candles 


or flammable materials is strictly prohibited. Use of any rice is prohibited. Birdseed or confetti 


may be used outside but must be cleaned up. The use of smoke machines is strictly prohibited. 


 


Weapons/Fireworks 


Restrictions apply to weapons, firearms, and fireworks – see BLMC 12.12.140 and 12.12.145. 


 


Smoking 


Tobacco use is prohibited per RCW 70.160.030, therefore, smoking, chewing, etc. is prohibited. 


Persons wishing to smoke may do so OUTSIDE the facility and at least 25 feet from any window 


or door. Please use provided receptacles for proper disposal of cigarettes. Rental groups are 


responsible for cleaning area of debris as a result of smoking/chewing associated with their 


group. 


 


Selling Items 


Rental groups wishing to sell items while renting a city facility must obtain a City of Bonney 


Lake Business License. A copy of the business license must be on file with the rental application 


7 days prior to the scheduled event. For information on obtaining a business license call (253) 


447-4354. 


 


A/V Use 


There is no A/V use available. Renters need to provide their own laptop, portable speakers, 


projector, microphones, screens, etc. 


 


Insurance 


Any non-personal use of any facilities will need to have a Commercial Liability and Participant 


Liability Certificates of Insurance and additional insured endorsements naming The City of 


Bonney Lake as an additional insured. Each Certificate shall include coverage with limits not 


less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. The Certificates of Insurance are required to be in the City’s 


possession at least five business days prior to the reservation date. Examples are: Special events, 


corporate hosted functions, athletic leagues. A personal insurance agent or an insurance agency 


may be of assistance in securing the required insurance. 


Agenda Packet p.53 of 53



https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html#12.12.140

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/BonneyLake/#!/BonneyLake12/BonneyLake1212.html#12.12.145

https://www.ci.bonney-lake.wa.us/UserFiles/Servers/Server_15292413/File/Administrative%20Services/Policies/700.100%20Tobacco%20Use%20In%20City%20Parks.pdf

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=70.160.030





 


 1 


 


City Facility Rental Checklist 


 


  


Date(s) of Event: ______________ Start Time: _______________ Exit Time: ____________ 


 


Facility/Location: _______________________________________ 


 


Contact Person: _________________________________________ 


 


Please Initial Boxes 


PRE RENTAL  YES NO EXIT RENTAL  YES NO 


Hard Surface Floors Clean   Hard Surface Floors Clean   


Carpets Clean   Carpets Clean   


Windows Clean   Windows Clean   


Tables/Chairs Clean   Tables/Chairs Clean   


Tables/Chairs Accessible   Tables/Chairs Returned to Original Setting   


Extra Chairs/Tables Accessible   Extra Chairs/Tables Stored   


Garbage Cans Empty & Lined   Garbage Cans Empty & Lined   


Cleaning Equipment Accessible   Renter's Supplies All Removed   


Bathrooms Clean & Stocked   Bathrooms Clean  & Stocked   


A/V Equip. Working Properly   A/V Equipment Working Properly   


Additional Staff Notes: 


 


List any damages, clean up problems and or miscellaneous information:  


 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


 


______________________________________________________________________________ 


 


Only sign at end of rental walk through 


  


Signature of Renter in Charge: ____________________________________________________ 


  


Signature of Bonney Lake Staff: ___________________________________________________ 


  


 


Agenda Packet p. 54 of 54






